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Daniel ]. Reiman, Mayor

Ronald Rios, Council President
Joseph Sitarz, Councilman
Randy Krum, Councilman

Susan Naples, Councilwoman
Jorge Diaz, Councilman
Vincent Bellino, Councilman
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Borough of Qarteret Daniel J. Reiman, Mayor
Working together to build a better Carteret

Dear Friends:

These past few years have been a great time for progress in Carteret. We have made dramatic
strides in improving our cityscape, and our overall quality of life standards. Most importantly we
have restored some of the pride in our community that until recently had been dormant.

Among the most significant of these improvements has been the restoration of our historic
Memorial Municipal Building. A few years ago it would have been difficult to believe that this
structure was in fact a regional treasure. With its initial construction and opening in 1924, this
building would serve not just as a home to our local administration, but as a tribute to those who
gave their lives in a war assumed to be the world’s last. The grandeur of its structure and aesthetic
details were clearly intended to serve as a reflection of the reverence held for those military
servicemen, and to preserve it indefinitely.

The restoration of our Memorial Municipal Building has been a considerable undertaking. With
$2,308,033.29 in grants and donations funding the project, Borough Hall has been meticulously
renovated with the guidance of historic specialists, who have served to ensure that every interior
and exterior detail is returned to its original integrity wherever possible. Along with this historical
accuracy has come a number of modernized amenities that have made the many public services it
houses A.D.A. accessible, and as technologically efficient as any workplace in the modern world.

With the recent celebration of our centennial anniversary as a Borough form of government this
has been an appropriate capital investment for complete restoration. As it is a treasure not just of
our Municipality but of the State of New Jersey, we have preserved an important piece of our
national history, and a level of regional pride deserving of this project. Many thanks are owed to
all of those both in and beyond Carteret who have supported it.

Sincerely,

DD -

Daniel J. Reiman
Mayor, Borough of Carteret

Memorial Municipal Building ® 61 Cooke Avenue @ Carteret, New Jersey 07008
Tel: 732-541-3801 @ Fax: 732-541-4989 @ Email: mayorsoffice@carteret.net
www.carteret.net
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After two years of grant seeking, architectural planning, and construction
the Borough of Carteret completed the historic rehabilitation of its
Memorial Municipal Building in 2007. The center of operations for
Carteret’s administration is also recognized as the only remaining
monument to the fallen American soldiers of World War | in the region.
To date the town has raised well over $2 million in federal, state, and
county grants, as well as corporate endowments to finance its restoration. |

Originally constructed from 1922 to 1924, the Memorial Municipal Building serves
as both an administrative center for town officials and a memorial to military
servicemen who died in World War I. Classified as “neoclassical,” Borough Hall’s
exterior features a Jeffersonian fagude masonry structure with ornate brickwork and
cast stone elements wrapping its windows and doors. Its structure culminates at the
building’s traditional entrance, where sizeable lonic pilasters support the Greek terra
cotta pediment that is the historical and aesthetic epicenter of the building’s design,
showcasing a detailed depiction of two World War One soldiers astride Carteret’s
town seal. The figures are encompassed by laurels and are hovered over by an
American eagle which defines the terra cotta's apex (see front cover).

The scope of rehabilitation has included the restoration of the terra cotta, cast stone and brick fagade, roof
replacement, reintroducing the council chambers to its original second floor space, improving A.D.A.
accessibility to all three floors with the introduction of an elevator, handicapped-accessible restrooms, all
new fraditional interior finishes, and the installation of historically correct energy efficient double hung
windows. The Council Chambers have been restored to their original
prestige with historically accurate walls, flooring, and woodworking,
as well as preserved rosettes. The marble flooring found throughout
the building has been preserved, as well as the original jail cells on its [
ground floor. Mechanical improvements include the installation of
traditional pendent mounted light fixtures, and the upgrading of the
building's heating, cooling, and plumbing systems. Structural
improvements have been aimed at both the preservation of the
building’s historical integrity and its modernization.

“Now restored to its original prominence and improved with the
enhancements of today’s technology, the completely rehabilitated
Borough Hall will continue to serve as a source of pride for our
community, and a testament to the World War One memorial that
Is Borough Hall. A war long forgotten, that is evident only in the
history books and the few remaining memorials that remind us of
the sacrifices made nearly 90 years ago.”

—Mayor Daniel J. Reiman
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The Memorial Municipal Building

The building in question is the Memorial Municipal Building, constructed to honor the servicemen and women of WWI. It was erected
at a time when the just-concluded war was referred to as the “war to end all wars™ and the “great war” because it was inconceivable
that any war could be more devastating. Americans believed that no civilized society would ever allow a world-wide conflict of such
utter chaos to happen again and never again would world leaders send so many into battle to die such horrible deaths. Little did the
country know that in 20+ years, we would once again be embroiled in a conflict just as frightening and equally as world-wide. The
“war to end all wars” became WWI.

The Carteret Memorial Municipal Building was built on the backs.of thousands of local residents who died or were wounded to make
the world free, and on the tears of millions who mourned for those who perished, both here and abroad. At least 3 memorial town halls,
similar to Carteret’s, were constructed in Middlesex County — they represented a “monumental” gesture that was repeated all over the
USA.

Sadly, today, few remain. In Middlesex County, all but-one has been razed. * Too often, when the battles or incidents happen off our
shores, when the last of the people who remember the crisis first-hand are gone...our collective consciousness forgets: Ironic, but we
remove the very memorials we have crected so as NOT to forget.

Thus, it has happened, that the only WWI memorial building still standing in central New Jersey is that of Carteret. It is an important
structure to save and the County should be involved, because of the significance of the building and the history it represents.

Each design element of the memorial building has significance — no element was placed without reason. The main entrance to Carteret
Borough Hall is strongly influenced by Thomas Jefferson’s pavilion designs — invented by this statesman to symbolize the people’s
form of government. The 12-over-12 hung windows, some with fans or ovals, are indicative of Federal Period architecture — so named
as it was popular immediately after the Revolutionary War and through the early decades of our new nation. Also of Federal style are
the low hipped roof, and the fact that the decoration of the brick exterior is confined to the majestic front entry. This is all quite fitting
for a municipal structure, dedicated to those who fought for freedom.

The Carteret Borough Hall is architecturally important because it was fabricated at a time when “master” craftsmen were still found
among the building trades. Terra cotta embellishments were possible — soon after however, this industry for which Middlesex County
was famous would die. The tableau in the frieze above the columns represents the land and sea efforts during the war — a doughboy
and a sailor. The lions that grace the portico, are in all likelihood, there to protect truth and justice, as the building housed not only
government but the original jail.

The Cultural and Heritage Commission strongly urges that this project go forward. It will engender a great sense of pride for the people
of Carteret and Middlesex County and serve as an anchor for all the other rehabilitation and redevelopment efforts underway or planned
by Carteret. This is a structure worth saving for its history, for its architecture and most importantly, for the memory of our WWI
veterans.

Recognizing the scope of this project, and the importance, I believe that an opportunity may exist for future listings on the State and
National Registers of Historic Places, and for possible NJ Historic Trust funding in the 2005 round. However, it is vital that a
preservation architect be among the professionals working on the project. No state funding could be awarded without the inclusion of
such expertisc. A preservation architect is knowledgeable about craftsmen who continue traditions that may be needed to restore
certain elements of the architecture and design. They are experienced in solving problems that arise when decisions need to be made
between Secretary of Interior National Preservation Standards and contemporary code, are able to provide accurate cost-estimates from
their base of knowledge. Preservation architects know of unique solutions to restoration issues, because they have experienced them
before and devised answers that met preservation standards. Much like engineering specialties such as structural and electrical,
preservation architects are specialists in their ficld and should be brought aboard this project.

Anna M. Aschkenes, Executive Director
Middlesex County Cultural and Heritage Commission




“The lions that grace the
portico, are in all
likelihood, there to
protect truth and justice,
as the building housed
not only government but
the original jail...”

-Anna M. Aschkenes
Executive Director
Middlesex County Cultural and Heritage Commission
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In 1906 cows were still driven to pasture along
Roosevelt Avenue, then Rnown as Rahway
Avenue. Trolleys emerged in the early 1900’s
first as horse driven vehicles replacing the
smaller stagecoaches.

The Carteret school system had its beginning as the first red brick schoolhouse,
which still stands in the West Carteret section.

Also in 1906, the first banking institution
was established. The First National Bank,
opened its doors in the Chrome district. The
second bank was founded in 1923 and began
its operation in a small store, later erecting
its own building on Cooke Avenue.

In 1906, the Borough Council passed an ordinance creating a police
department. Eight men were appointed. Henry J. Harrington, one of the eight,
was promoted to Sergeant on July 9, 1908. He became the Borough'’s first
police chief. Mr. Harrington retired in March of 1954 and George Sheridan,
Jr., succeeded him as chief.

% In the 1920’s, the Fire Company had horse drawn fire

Ry to tﬁeﬁre-

Owver the years Carteret has seen many changes. Manufacturing, which was a
major industry, has disappeared. What we see now is the beginning of a
Renaissance of the Borough. Major improvements are being made to our
waterfront, Chrome, and the business district along Roosevelt Avenue.
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the Historic Restoration Project

proviced by
NJ Fufldfng Fund DCA Granf
Frolegis Corporation Endowrrent:
CPRRG Grant
Rzdisson Hoftel Donation
NJ ADA Granfs
Meplzr Companies Ponaticn
“rder Meorgan Erndowrient -
WMiiddlesex Covnty Community F‘nvdopr“@rn
Middlesex Cownfty CORG Piscretiornary Grant
Ofher
Cepital Pond
NJ DCA - Mortar & Brick
ABPA CREG Z005

Historic Restoration Grant

$50,000.00
586,480.00
$3200,000,00
$75,000.00
$50,000.00
$50,000,.00
$132,000.00

$600,000.00

17,000.00
$100,000.00

$700,000.00
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